United States Department of the Interior Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form





	complete applic	able sections			•
<u> 1. Nam</u>	ie				
nistoric Will	liam Tell Saloo	n and Hotel			
and/or common	The St. Helen	na Feed and Seed	Building		
2. Loca	ation				
street & number	1228 Spring	Street			_ not for publication
city, town	St. Helena	vicinit	y of congress	ionai district	2nd
state	California	code ⁰⁶	county Napa		code 055
3. Clas	sification)			
Category district X building(s) structure site object	Ownership public private both Public Acquisitio in process being consider	yes: restri	ed <u>X</u> cor ogress <u> </u>	riculture mmercial ucational tertainment vernment	museum park park religious scientific transportation other:
	neth Dudwick l St. Helena Hig	ghway North			
ity, town St.	Helena	vicinit	y of	state Ca	lifornia 94574
5. Loca	ation of L	egal Descr	iption		
ourthouse, regis	stry of deeds, etc.	Napa Registrar	of Deeds		
street & number		Napa County Co	urthouse		
city, town		Napa		state C	alifornia
6. Repi	resentation	on in Exist	ing Surve	ys	
itle Napa Cour	nty Historic Rea	sources Invent ches	this property been o	determined eleg	ibie? yes _X_ n
iate 1978	•			eral <u>x</u> state	
		fornia Office of		•	
city, town		amento, CA 95811		state	
,, town	2401			31016	

7. Description

Condition excellent	deteriorated	Check one unaitered	Check one	site	
excellent	ruins	xx altered	moved	date	
fair	unexposed				

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The original building appears to have been built in three segments, proceeding from south to north. The southern section, one story in height, rests on a stone double-wall cellar, originally mortarless. The central section contained 20 small rooms on the second floor, and the northern section, also two stories, housed the saloon and had rooms upstairs. A lobby and dining room were on the first floor of the central section.

Early advertisements reveal the William Tell Saloon was in operation by 1876 and this was most likely in the one story section with the stone cellar; B. Tosetti was proprietor. The Salmina family owned the hotel in 1886 and by that time the later central and northern sections were completed. Wood detailing evident on the second floor reveals substantial and practical wood joinery; the windows, doors, trim and frames are of no-nonsense commercial design typical of the 1870's and 1880's.

The William Tell Hotel, as it appears in photographs taken circa 1890, was a wood frame structure clad in shiplap siding. A typical Victorian parapeted false front stepped down in three segments and a lean-to portico did likewise, covering a timber walkway. The original pillars supporting this portico were square with timber capitals and bases painted in contrasting colors. At that time the William Tell Hotel appeared as part of a cluster of several frame false-front hotel/boardinghouses and saloons. Only the William Tell Hotel remains from this 19th century streetscape.

At an undetermined date the stepped false-front facade was changed to the continuous shiplap false-front with a straight parapet shown in the pre-restoration photos. (1977) The window and door openings of the street facade on the first floor were modified and the first level covered with stucco. A variety of lean-tos were added; a hay barn at the rear and a corrigated metal shed to one side were added when the building was converted to a feed store in 1946. However, the second floor remained virtually intact and the unusual double masonry wall was still evident. The portico covering the sidewalk was removed.

It was in this severely altered state that the present owner purchased the property. Since March of 1979, the owner and the developer have attempted to restore the building as much as possible to its appearance shown in the historic photo (c. 1890). The covered sidewalk has been replaced with detailing as close as possible to the original. The height differs from the original due to compliance with building ordinances stipulating that the feature be a uniform 7½ feet high; the three original heights were probably a result of the different phases of building. The false fronts have been restored, recreating the appearance of the original. The stone masonry has been repaired, and the inside and outside have been pointed. The original stone was without mortar; the pointing was required by the city for safety. Unobservable from the outside are structural beams and posts to carry the weight of the above story in the event of an earthquake. The design and rough texture of the wood are sympathetic and similar to the original design and materials.

The historical photograph shows some sashes of six lights. However, when the current owner purchased the building, most of the sashes were four light. All sashes now have been made uniformly four light with the feeling that these windows do retain the antique attitude. There were no six light sashes remaining at the time of purchase; however, a number of old four light windows remained, and have been retained.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR HCRS USE ONLY
RECEIVED JUN 1 7 1980
DATE ENTERED.

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE

2

The stucco has been removed, and old siding has been used to match the original. The detailing below the windows on the outside first story was duplicated from the extant photos and books of architecture that were contemporary and appropriate to the time and place. Upstairs windows in the northern section had been lowered in the past at an unknown date; these were not raised to the original configuration in the restoration. Also, the original door between the windows on the second story of this section was not replaced for safety precautions. All original and functional doors were rehabilitated, and new doors and windows were replaced according to the old design and made functional for present use.

The stairway to the second floor is being replaced where remains have shown the original existed. The hotel room walls must be moved to comply with existing codes, but the doors and panelling will be reused in the reconstruction. There will be offices upstairs, but the feeling will be close to the original. Old lighting fixtures have been chosen to complement the original attitude.

The recently completed exterior restoration of the William Tell Hotel has returned the facade to a close approximation of its original late 19th century appearance. The severe alterations have been reversed, and the building once again conveys a strong sense of St. Helena's past. The building is the only remaining example of the community's early false-front architecture.

8. Significance

Period prehistoric 1400–1499 1500–1599 1600–1699 1700–1799XX 1800–1899 1900–	Areas of Significance—C archeology-prehistoric agriculture architecture art commerce communications		Iandscape architectur Iaw Iiterature Implication Indication Indica	re religion science sculpture social/ humanitarian theater transportation other (specify)
Specific dates	Constructed ca 1876.	Builder/Architect u	nknown	

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The William Tell Hotel is a unique local example of western false-front architecture illustrating not only the functional commercial design typical of the 1870's and 1880's but also the early stone wall construction once common in Napa County and now rarely seen. The double stone wall cellar of the Hotel is the only example of the early masonry technique in downtown St. Helena which predates the native stone craftsmanship of its Main Street commercial buildings, erected in the 1880's and 1890's. The building is one of the oldest commercial buildings in St. Helena, dating from the period of the town's incorporation.

The William Tell Hotel, operated in the 1870's as the William Tell Saloon by B. Tossetti, owner of a small wine cellar in the town of St. Helena, was acquired by the Salmina family in 1878. The Salminas would later establish Larkmead Winery, now Hanns Kornell Winery, north of St. Helena, Passing out of the Salmina family in 1898, the William Tell Hotel continued under the management of Walter Martini in the early 1900's. The Hotel, operated continuously from the 1870's until the 1940's as a saloon, hotel and restaurant, was typical of the many early hotels established in Napa County by Italian, Swiss, German and French immigrants arriving in the 19th century.

9. Maj	or Bibliogra	phical Refe	erences	
St. Helena	Star, Advertisement M. Coast Counties H	, March-April 187	6.	
Sanborn In	surance Maps. 1886.	St. Helena	000•	
Napa City a			ublished and eng	graved by H. A. Darms,
	eographical	Data		See Continuation Sheet
Acreage of nor	ninated property0.21	acre	T VERIFIED	
Quadrangle na	me St. Helena, Cali	fornia	Qua	ndrangle scale <u>1:2⁴000</u>
UMT Reference	es	ACREAGE NOT	AFKILIFD	
A 1 0 5 2 Zone Eas	+ 16 4 4 0 4 2 6 1 ting Northing	<u>6</u> 4d	Zone Easting	- Northing
E L	<u> </u>	F		
G	اللا لتأل	н		المنابات المالية
Verbal bound	ary description and just	ification		6
	are drawn to encompa on sheet for verbal-l			resource. See
List all states	s and counties for prope	rties overlapping sta	te or county bound	laries
state		odé county	•	code
state	-	ode county	-	code
11. Fo	rm Prepared	Ву		
name/title F	Paul H. Drymalski		OHP Staff r	revision: February 6, 1980
organization ^I	eveloper		date 11-15-	·79
street & numbe	2710 Baker Street		telephone 41	5/921 - 6522 or 707/963 - 767
city or town	San Francisco		state ^{Cali}	fornia 94123
12. Sta	ate Historic	Preservati	on Office	r Certification
The evaluated s	ignificance of this property	within the state is:	,	
-	national sta	ate <u>X</u> local		
665), I hereby no according to the	ed State Historic Preservationinate this property for ince criteria and procedures se reservation Officer signatures.	clusion in the National F t forth by the Heritage C	Register and certify the Conservation and Rec	
title			d	ate May 29,1980
For HCRS use	only ertify that this property is in	Aladad la the State		
Buren	- Man Dinas	Cluded in the National I		6 5///t GG
1/10	J	The second secon		The second secon
keebei oi We	National Register		The state of the s	
Attest: CU	tude Andrea			5/4/82

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR HCRS USE ONLY
RECEIVED JUN 1 7 1980
DATE ENTERED.

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 9

PAGE 1

Mark Strong's Napa Valley, 1886-1924, by David and Kathleen Kernberger, Historic Photos, Publishers, 1978

Especially old photographs of St. Helena at Vintage Hall, St. Helena, as well as explorations of contemporary buildings in California.

Also interviews with Lloyd Stice, W. M. Martini, and T. Anthony Quinn, great-grandson of original hotelkeeper.

Form No. 10-300a

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM



CONTINUATION SHEET 1

ITEM NUMBER 10

PAGE l of l

Verbal Boundary Description:

Commencing at a point on the northwesterly line of Spring Street from where the monument marking the intersection of the centerlines of Spring Street with Oak Avenue bears 37°ll' West 100.65 feet and thence South 52°49' East 25.0 feet distant; and running thence from said point of commencement along the northwesterly line of Spring Street and parallel to said monumented center of Spring Street North 37°ll' East 75.0 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 52° 49' West 83 feet 10 inches to an iron pipe; thence South 37°ll' West 20.25 feet to an iron pipe thence North 52°49' West 40 feet 2 inches to an iron pipe; thence South 37°ll' West 54.75 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 52°49' east 124.0 feet to the point of commencement.

9-250-08 MAIN ST. 29 STATE HIGHWAYS 128 25 6**9** 2960 25 58 76 0 0.15 20 21 22 19 3 6 (14 MONEY WAY 61 46E 19.51 972 (10) 552-53E 73 73 279-28-18-1 S. B. E. SPRING S.B.E.279-28-18-1 (13)OAK AVE. CITY NAPA COUNTY ASSESSOR'S 23 Assessor PARCEL NO. Cobi NOTE - Assessor's Block Number's Shown in Ellipses YOU MAY WISH TO KEEP THIS MAP AS Assessor's Parcel Numbers Shown in Circles A PERMANENT RECORD. Geo. P. Abato William Tell Hotel

St. Helena, Napa County, California